Filed Under Seal

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA - CRIMINAL NO._ K 4
v. : DATE FILED: /. /& /70
FNU LNU #1,
a/k/a “RICKY,” : VIOLATIONS:
a/k/a “Jose Claudio,” 18 U.S.C. § 371 (conspiracy - 1 count)
a/k/a “Felimon” ¢ 18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3) ITAR -7 counts)
FNU LNU #2, 18 U.S.C. § 2422(a) (Mann Act - 7 counts)
a/k/a “JOHNNY,” : 18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting)
a/k/a “Raymond Gonsalez”
FNU LNU #3,
a/k/a “NICO,”
a/k/a “Nicolas Gonzalez
Salazar”
FNU LNU #4,
a/k/a “R0OJO,”
a/k/a “Rubio,”

a/k/a “Leonel Rubio”

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:
INTRODUCTION
The Defendants and their Prostitution Enterprise
At all times material to this indictment:
1. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” a/k/a “Jose Claudio,” a/k/a
“Felimon,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” a/k/a “Raymond Gonsalez,” Hispanic males,
controlled and operated a prostitution enterprise from Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, that used an

interstate network of Hispanic females to provide sexual services to male customers for a fee.



2. The prostitution enterprise controlled by defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a
“RICKY,” and FNU LNU#2, a/k/a “] OHNNY?” provided prostitution services in “house,” that 1s,
in brothels set up in various residential locations in South Philadelphia, including addresses at
1221A South 7" Street, and 1314 South 6" Street. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,”
and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY also provided a prostitution “delivery” service, where
customers ordered prostitutes by phone. The prostitutes were then delivered to the male
customer at the location the customer requested by a driver working for defendants FNU LNU#1,
a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY.” The customers were charged a cash
amount of $30 for 15 minutes with the prostitute at the brothel location or through the delivery
service. Prostitution services were provided on a daily basis from Monday through Saturday
from approximately 11 a.m. to approximately 11 p.m., and on Sunday until approximately 5 p.m.

LY Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” recruited, coordinated and scheduled prostitutes to travel to Philadelphia from New
York, New Jersey and Delaware, among other states, to work as prostitutes for this business
enterprise. The females lived in the brothels primarily for a week at a time while they worked as
prostitutes in “house” or for “delivery.” Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU
LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” brought in three new women on a weekly basis to service the
customers. The prostitutes were paid a cash amount at the end of the week based on the number
of customers serviced. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” controlled the cash receipts generated from the enterprise and authorized payment

to the prostitutes.
4, Defendant FNU LNU#3, a/k/a “NICO,” a/k/a “Nicolas Gonzalez

Salazar,” a Hispanic male, worked for defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU
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interstate cellular telephone facilities to promote, manage and carry on an unlawful activity, that
is a business enterprise involving prostitution, in violation of the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes Annotated, Section 5902, and
performed and attempted to perform acts to promote, manage, carry on, and facilitate the
promotion, management, and carrying on of the unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1952(a)(3); and

(b) To persuade and induce female aliens to travel in interstate commerce to
engage in prostitution and sexual activity, for which any person can be charged with a criminal
offense, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2422(a).

MANNER AND MEANS

It was part of the conspiracy that:

7. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” used various residential locations in South Philadelphia, including addresses at
1221A South 7® Street and 1314 South 6™ Street, to operate as brothels, from which defendants
conducted a prostitution enterprise, using Hispanic females to provide sexual services for male
customers in exchange for cash.

8. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” provided prostitution services “in house™ at the brothel locations, and also provided
a prostitution “delivery” service, where orders for the females were placed by telephone to cell
phones controlled by defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,”
and FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO.” The prostitutes were delivered to the customers at the location

designated by the customer by defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” who served as a driver.



Deliveries of prostitutes were made to customers primarily in Philadelphia, as well as parts of
Delaware County. A customer was charged the rate of $30 in cash for 15 minutes with the
prostitute, at the brothel location “in house,” or through the delivery service.

9, Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” routinely scheduled three new females to arrive each week in Philadelphia to work
for their prostitution business. The females who worked for defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a
“RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” were of Hispanic ethnicity and arrived in
Philadelphia by bus, primarily from New York City. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,”
and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” scheduled and arranged for the females to arrive at the
Greyhound Bus Terminal at 10" and Filbert Streets in Philadelphia (Greyhound Bus Terminal),
where the females were picked up by the defendants FNU LNU #1, a/k/a “RICKY” or FNU LNU
4. alk/a “JOHNNY,” and transported to the brothel located at 1221A South 7" Street. Two of
the females were assigned to work in the brothel location and one of the females was assigned to
work the delivery service. After a week, the females were transported back to the Greyhound
Bus Terminal in Philadelphia to return to New York City, and elsewhere.

10.  The prostitutes lived at the brothel locations for the time they worked for
defendants FNU LNU #1, a/k/a “RICKY” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY.” The females’
access to and from the brothel location at 1221A South 7 Street was controlled by defendant
FNU LNU #4, a/k/a, “ROJO.”

11.  Prostitution services were provided at the brothel locations and through the
delivery service from approximately 11 a.m. to approximately 11 p.m., Monday through

Saturday, and until approximately 5 p.m. on Sunday. Customers called specific cellular



telephone numbers which accessed defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” FNU LNU #2,
a/k/a “JOHNNY.” and FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” to arrange for delivery service or to obtain
the location of the brothel. Business cards were distributed on the street to customers providing
the telephone numbers to call for the services. Customer access 1o and from the brothel location
at 1221A South 7% Street was controlled by defendant FNU LNU #4, a/k/a “R0OJO.”

12. Defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” and FNU LNU #4, a/k/a “R0OJO,” kept track of the number of customers serviced
by the prostitutes through “punch cards” or “tickets” that were maintained by defendant FNU
LNU #4, a/k/a “ROJO,” to provide a weekly talley of the number of customers serviced per
prostitute. At the end of the week, the prostitutes were paid in cash by defendants FNU LNU#1,
a/k/a “RICKY.,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” based on the number of customers
serviced. Approximately sixty to seventy different females worked for the defendants’
prostitution enterprise between approximately August 2009 to January 2010.

13, Cellular telephones were used by defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a
“RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” to coordinate the scheduling of the prostitutes
and their arrival in Philadelphia from New York City and elsewhere on a weekly basis; to arrange
the transportation of the prostitutes from the bus terminal in Philadelphia to the brothel locations;
to field customers calls for prostitutes and arrange the services for customers; and to coordinate
operations with the driver, defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” and the doormen, defendant
FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “R0OJO.”

14.  Approximately $9,000 per week was generated in proceeds from the

prostitution services provided by the enterprise operated by defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a



“RICKY,” FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” and FNU LNU #4,
a/k/a “R0OJO.”
OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy, defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” FNU
LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” FNU LNU #4, a/k/a “ROJO,” and
others known and unknown to the grand jury, committed the following overt acts in the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere:

L. On or about August 3, 2009, at approximately 2:21 p.m. , defendant FNU
LNU #3, a/k/a NICO, picked up an unidentified Hispanic female at the brothel location, 1221A
South 7" Street, and transported the female to 23 and Diamond Street in Philadelphia for a
prostitution delivery.

2. On or about August 9, 2009, commencing at approximately 2:26 p.m.,
defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO” transported an unidentified Hispanic female to a series of
locations in Philadelphia for prostitution deliveries.

8 On or about August 10, 2009, at approximately 12:17 p.m., defendant
FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” picked up an unidentified Hispanic female at the Greyhound Bus
Terminal at 10" and Filbert Streets in Philadelphia (“Greyhound Bus Terminal”) and transported
the female to the brothel location at 1221 A South 7th Street in Philadelphia.

4. On or about August 17, 2009, at approximately 10:35 a.m., defendant
FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” picked up an unidentified Hispanic female at the Greyhound Bus

Terminal and transported the female to the brothel location at 1221A South 7th Street.



5. Onorabout August 17, 2009, at approximately 11:19 a.m., defendants FNU
LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” picked up an unidentified
Hispanic female from the area of the Greyhound Bus Terminal and transported the female to the
above brothel location.

6.  On or about August 31, 2009, at approximately 11:17 a.m., defendant FNU
LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” picked up an unidentified Hispanic female arriving by bus from New
York City, New York to the Greyhound Bus Terminal and transported the female to the brothel
location at 1221 A South 7" Street at approximately 11:27 a.m.

7. On or about September 25, 2009, a cooperating individual, working at the
direction of agents with Immigration & Customs Enforcement (“ICE”) and posing as a
prostitute, placed a consensually monitored telephone call to a cell phone used by defendant FNU
LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” bearing number (215) 668-1923, to make arrangements to work for
FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” as a prostitute. Defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,”
asked the caller, if she wanted to work “house” or “delivery, “and stated that he would need “one
female” and instructed the caller to call him on Sunday between “11 and 12.”

8. On or about September 25, 2009, an undercover officer, working with ICE
and posing as a customer, placed a consensually monitored telephone call to a cell phone used by
defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” bearing number (267) 322- 9965, and asked where to go
for a woman. Defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” told the undercover to go to “7th and
Federal” and then call him. Defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” told the undercover that it
would cost “30.”

9. On or about Oclob;:r 25, 2009, at approximately 1:30 p.m., defendant FNU

LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” using cell phone bearing number 215 -668-1923, spoke to a



Hispanic female named “Ruby” who identified herself to be “Venezuelan” and willing to work
“delivery.” Defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” told “Ruby” to call defendant FNU
LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” when she arrived at the Greyhound Bus Terminal in Philadelphia
from 42" Street and defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” would pick her up.

10. On or about October 27, 2009, at approximately 9:52 p.m., defendant FNU
LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” using cell phone bearing number 267-266-4983, spoke to defendant
FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” using cell phone number 267-322-9965, and directed defendant
FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” to do “deliveries” with unidentified Hispanic female called
“Connie.” Defendant FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” stated he would bring another female to
Delaware.

11. On or about October 29, 2009, at approximately 2:40 p.m., defendant FNU
LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-322-9965, spoke to an unidentified
Hispanic male who wanted “girls.” Defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO” replied that he had
“three” and they were Venezuelan, Columbian and Dominican and they were available for
“delivery.”

12.  On or about November 1, 2009 at approximately, 11:10 a.m., defendant
FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” using cell phone bearing number 215-668-1923, spoke to a
Hispanic female called “Mariella”, who called defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” to
“report” herself. Defendant” FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” instructed her to buy a ticket and
take the 8 a.m. bus from New York to Philadelphia and to call defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” when she arrived in Philadelphia and he will pick her up.

13.  On or about November 4, 2009, at approximately 10 p.m., defendant FNU

LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-322-9965, spoke to an unidentified



Hispanic male who asked how many women defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” could bring
for delivery to which defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” replied he could bring a
Salvadoran who is 25 and that the charge is “30.” The male stated that the three of them each
wanted a woman.

14. On or about November 24, 2009 at approximately 8:14 p.m., defendant FNU
LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” using cell phone bearing number 267-266-4983, spoke to defendant
FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-974-2474, about setting up a
new brothel location in the Upper Darby area of Delaware County because the area is good at
night. Defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” stated it was important to give it another name so
it is not associated with “them.”

15. On or about November 28, 2009 at approximately 12:36 p.m., defendant
FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” using cell phone bearing number 267-266-4983, spoke to
defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “R0OJO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-702-7345, and
provided defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “ROJO,” with the number for a customer and instructed
defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “R0OJO,” to send the “girl.”

16. On or about November 30, 2009, at approximately 3:11 p.m., defendant
FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” using cell phone bearing number 267-266- 4983, spoke to
defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “R0OJO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-702-7345, and
directed defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “R0OJO,” to meet two customers at 7" and Federal Streets
in Philadelphia and further stated that he defendant FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” would be there
with “the girl.”

17. On or about November 30, 2009, at approximately 5:26 p.m., defendant

FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” using cell phone bearing number 267-974-2474, spoke to an

10



unidentified Hispanic male who stated he was calling from South Philadelphia and wanted to
know what defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” had “right now,” to which defendant FNU
LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” stated he had a “Salvadoran” for delivery and that “she was good.”
Defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” directed the caller to 7" and Wharton and told the caller
to call defendant FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” who would then get him.

18. On or about December 6, 2009, at approximately 12:44 p.m., defendant
FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” using cell phone bearing number 215-668-1923, spoke to a
Hispanic female called “Creny” who called defendant FNU LNU#2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” about
whether defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” needed “one.” Defendant FNU LNU #2,
a/k/a “JOHNNY,” replied that he needed one for the “house’ and for “delivery.” Defendant
FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” instructed “Creny” to take the 8 a.m. bus to Philadelphia and to
arrive no later than 10:30 a.m., and further stated that he would pay her “fare” once she arrived in
Philadelphia.

19. On or about December 7, 2009, at approximately 10:44 a.m., defendant
FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” using cell phone bearing number 267-266-4933, spoke to a
prostitute “Jenny” and directed her from the Greyhound Bus Terminal to a minivan driven by
defendant FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” who transported “Jenny” to the brothel at 1221A
South 7™ Street, where she was escorted into the brothel by defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a
“R0OJO.”

20.  On or about December 14, 2009, at approximately 12:15 p.m., a prostitute
“ Adriana” met defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a “RICKY,” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,”

in the vicinity of the Greyhound Bus terminal and was transported by a minivan to the brothel at

11



1221A South 7™ Street and escorted into the brothel by defendant FNU LNU#4, a/k/a “ROJO.

All in violation of Title 18 United States Code Section 371.

12



COUNTS TWO THROUGH EIGHT

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
1. Paragraphs 1 through 5 and 7 through 14 of Count One are realleged.
2. On or about the dates set forth below, in the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, defendants
FNU LNU #1,
a/k/a “RICKY,”
a/k/a “Jose Claudio,”
a/k/a “Felimon,” and
FNU LNU #2,
a/k/a “JOHNNY,”
a/k/a “Raymond Gonsalez”
used and caused to be used, and aided and abetted the use of, a facility in interstate commerce,
that is, interstate cellular telephone communications between the defendants FNU LNU#1, a/k/a
“RICKY.” and FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” and the female prostitutes with the intent to
promote, manage, and carry on, and facilitate the promotion, management, and carrying on, of
unlawful activity, that is a business enterprise involving prostitution, in violation of the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes Annotated,
Section 5902, and thereafter performed and attempted to perform acts to promote, manage, carry

on, and facilitate the promotion, management, and carrying on, of unlawful activity, each cellular

telephone communication constituting a separate count:
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COUNT

TELEPHONE
COMMUNICATION

DATE/TIME

FNU LNU #2,

a/k/a “JOHNNY,”
215-668-1923 and “Ruby,”
347-414-6887:

directed the prostitute “Ruby”
to purchase a bus ticket to
Philadelphia from New York
City to work as a “delivery”
prostitute

October 25, 2009,
1:30 p.m.

FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,”

215-668-1923 and “Mariella,”
919-285-5178:

directed the prostitute
“Mariella” to take the 8 a.m.
bus from New York City to
Philadelphia

November 1, 2009,
11:10 a.m.

FNU LNU #2, a/k/a
“JOHNNY,” 215-668-1923
and “Fanny” 347-870-5462:
directed the prostitute
“Fanny” to contact defendant
JOHNNY once she purchased
the bus ticket out of 42"
Street and stated that he
would see her tomorrow

November 8, 2009,
11:15am.

FNU LNU #1, a/k/a RICKY,
267-266-4983 and
“Veronica,” 347-531 8288:
discussed the arrival of the
prostitute “Veronica™ to
Philadelphia from
Wilmington, Delaware

November 29, 2009,
11:15 p.m.

14




COUNT

TELEPHONE
COMMUNICATION

DATE/TIME

FNU LNU #1,

a/k/a “RICKY,” 267-266-
4983 and “Adriana,”
347-792-9491: discussed
scheduling the prostitute
“Adriana” to work in
December 2009

November 29, 2009,
4:16 p.m.

FNU LNU #2, a/k/a,
“JOHNNY,” 215-668-1923
and “Jenny,” 347-599-8124:
offered to schedule prostitute
“Jenny” the week of
December 14, 2009 and
discussed whether “Jenny”
wanted to work “delivery”or
the “house

November 30, 2009,
11:28 p.m.

FNU LNU #1, a/k/a
“RICKY,” 267-266-4983 and
“Perla,” 201-927-9137:
discussed the status of
“Perla’s” travel to
Philadelphia

December 7, 2009,
10:59 a.m.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1952(a)(3) and 2.




COUNTS NINE THROUGH FIFTEEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:
i Paragraphs 1 through 5 and 7 through 14 of Count One are realleged.
2 On or about the dates set forth below, in the Eastern district of

Pennsylvania , and elsewhere, defendants

FNU LNU #1,

a/k/a “RICKY,”

a/k/a “Jose Claudio,”

a/k/a “Felimon,”
FNU LNU #2,

a/k/a “JOHNNY,”

a/k/a “Raymond Gonsalez”
FNU LNU #3,

a/k/a “NICO,”

a/k/a “Nicolas Gonzalez Salazar,”’and
FNU LNU #4,

a/k/a “R0OJO,”

a/k/a “Rubio,”

a/k/a “Leonel Rubio”

induced, and attempted to induce, and aided and abetted inducing the females named below to
travel in interstate commerce from New York City, New York to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania to
engage in prostitution and in sexual activity for which any person can be charged with a criminal
offense, under the direction and control of the defendants FNU LNU #1, a/k/a “RICKY,” a/k/a
“Jose Claudio,” a’/k/a “Felimon,” FNU LNU #2, a/k/a “JOHNNY,” a/k/a “Raymond Gonsalez,”
FNU LNU #3, a/k/a “NICO,” a/k/a “Nicolas Gonzalez Salazar,” and FNU LNU #4, a/k/a
“R0OJO,” a/k/a “Rubio,” a/k/a “Leonel Rubio,” each individual female constituting a separate

count:

16
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